ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
ADM NI STRATI VE REGULATI ON REVI EW COWMW TTEE
Eagl e River, Al aska
June 18, 2014
8:07 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lora Reinbold, Chair
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Hollis French

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis
Representative Tanm e Wl son (via tel econference)
Representative Sam Kito (via tel econference)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

| MPLEMENTATI ON AND EFFECTI VENESS OF TEACHER EVALUATI ON SYSTEMS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

SANDRA STOSTKY, Ed.D, Professor Enerita

Uni versity of Arkansas

Br ookl i ne, Massachusetts

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed concern wth tying teacher
eval uations with a single test.

ANDY HOLLEMAN, President

Anchor age Education Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded remarks on the teacher eval uation
system

ARR COW TTEE -1- June 18, 2014



MARK VANARSDALE, Parent & Technol ogy Coordi nat or

Eagl e Ri ver Hi gh School

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed <concerns wth the teacher
eval uati on system

MATT PRNKA, Teacher

Eagl e Ri ver Hi gh School

Anchor age School District

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed concerns wth the teacher
eval uati on system

GLENN MORDI NE, Retired Teacher, Adm nistrator

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded remarks regarding Al aska's teacher
eval uati on system

RI CK SM TH, Teacher

(No address provided.)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed concern with the proposed teacher
eval uati on system

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing teacher evaluation systens,
answer ed questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:07:41 AM

CHAIR LORA REINBOLD called the Administrative Regul ation Review
Commttee neeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Tarr

and Reinbold were present at the call to order. Also in
attendance were Representatives (Gattis, T. Wlson (via
tel econference), and Kito Il (via tel econference).

| npl enent ati on and Effectiveness of Teacher Eval uati on Systens

8:08: 43 AM

ARR COW TTEE - 2- June 18, 2014



CHAI R REI NBOLD announced that the only order of business would
be to hear public testinony from teachers across the state
regarding the teacher evaluation regulation adopted by the
Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent in Decenber
2012. She stated that there was overwhel m ng concern regarding
these regulations, in fact, over 800 public coments were
received by the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED) during the public coment period, and the majority of the
corments were in opposition to the regulations. The main
concerns were wth regard to confidentiality, student data
collection, and the evaluation of student scope and performance.
During the Decenber 6-7, 2012 board neetings, an anmendment was
adopted that changed the student scope and performance from a
base of 20 percent in fiscal year 2015-2017, to 36 percent in
2017-2018, and to 50 percent in 2018-2019. Therefore, by 2018,
50 percent of a teacher's evaluation wll be determ ned by
student growh and performance, including performance on one
standardi zed test, she explained. Chair Reinbold opined that
the aforenentioned criterion does not take into consideration
variabl es outside the control of the classroom teacher. Thi s
change to the regulation, she pointed out, is based on a public
comment submitted by the governor, and the teachers were not
provided sufficient tine to comment on the proposed change.
Therefore, this hearing is to provide teachers the opportunity
to voice their concerns with the change and to hear EED s
reasoni ng behind the regul ati ons and the anendnent.

8:10: 27 AM

SANDRA STOTSKY, Ed.D, speaking on her own behalf, informed the
committee that she is a former nenber of the Mssachusetts
Departnent of Education where she was a senior associate
commi ssioner from 1999-2003. She further inforned the conmttee
that she was a nmenber of the Comon Core Validation Conmittee
and is now a retired professor of education reform from the
Uni versity of Arkansas.

[Due to a technical difficulty, there is no audio from 8:13 a. m

to 8:17 a.m and the audio of M. Hollenman's testinony begins
m d-testinony. ]

ARR COW TTEE - 3- June 18, 2014



8:17:37 AM

ANDY HOLLEMAN, President, Anchorage Education Associ ation, [poor
qual ity audio] indicated concern with regard to the small anount
of data. He discussed using test scores of students to evaluate
teachers and expressed the desire to delay [that portion of the
teacher evaluation system until there is nore (indisc.)
regarding its accuracy.

8:18: 42 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD inquired as to how M. Holleman would reconmrend
grading students [and evaluating teachers] if not based on
student grow h.

MR. HOLLEMAN [poor quality audio and nost of his response is
i ndi scerni bl e] . M. Holleman opined that [teachers should be
eval uated] via classroom observations to identify any problens
and devel op a plan of inprovenent for the teacher.

8:21:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR [poor quality audio that is indiscernible].
MR. HOLLEMAN [ poor quality audio that is indiscernible].

8:21:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR [poor quality audio that is indiscernible]

rel ated her understanding that the goal is to identify [problens
with teachers] early to intervene appropriately.

MR. HOLLEMAN [poor quality audio that is indiscernible] opined
that at the end of the year, if there is not a lot of growh,
the principal should address it.

8:25:01 AM

MARK VANARSDALE, Parent and Technol ogy Coordinator, Eagle River
Hi gh School, Anchorage School District, speaking first as a
parent of a |earning disabled student, expressed great concern

ARR COW TTEE -4- June 18, 2014



with the up to 50 percent of data used to evaluate his son's

t eacher. He related that his son is a chronically flat
performer on any type of [witten] evaluation, particularly a
formati ve or summative database test. He said his son has been

bl essed with sonme wonderful special education teachers, but "ny
son would disproportionally make his teachers |ook terrible.”
Al of his teachers who have worked with him have great concern
for his son's overall growh as a person as well as
acadeni cal |l y. However, he opined, when it comes to any type of
witten assessnent, his son would disproportionately negatively
i npact his teachers. M. VanArsdale opined that obtaining
quality special education teachers is remarkably difficult.
Therefore, he expressed concern that for special education
teachers with low class sizes and poor performers like his son

tying 50 percent of their evaluation to student data would nmake
them | ook bad when in fact they are remarkable. From a parent
perspective, M. VanArsdale expressed fear that this type of
eval uation system would becone very punitive in nature rather
than incentivizing better instruction. Speaking as a teacher

he informed the commttee that he is a technology collaborator
for Eagle River H gh School, and therefore he is a specialist.
He expl ai ned that although he carries one to two student cl asses
per year, there is no formal test to evaluate his performance as
a technol ogy coll aborator. However, he pointed out, if he does
not do his job, many teachers in the building cannot do their
] obs. Furthernore, he said, there are a large nunber of
educators who wll be evaluated who are not |anguage arts and
mat h teachers. Noting that he is not opposed to the use of data
[in teacher evaluations], he opined that the use of 50 percent
of data in the evaluation of teachers ties the hands of
principals, whose main objective is to build a group of good
educators into better educators by evaluating them in meani ngful
ways.

8:31: 02 AM

MATT PRNKA, Teacher, Eagle River H gh School, Anchorage School
District, expressed concern regarding the definition of growth

particularly for those teachers with special needs students who
are on the lower end of academ c achi evenent. He said that the
| ack of growh could destroy a teacher's [evaluation] score. On

ARR COW TTEE - 5- June 18, 2014



the other end of the spectrum there are teachers with a |arge
nunmber of honors and above-average students who are already
perform ng above the state test scores at the beginning of the
school year. Therefore, they will still score above average at
the end of the school year, which technically neans there is no
gr owt h. In such a situation, he questioned whether that would
be detrinental to the teacher's evaluation score. M. Prnka
then expressed concern for the many teachers of courses that
cannot be assessed by standardized tests, such as theatre,
debate, choir, and physical education.

8:34: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if anyone has an idea of a different
way to inplenent teacher evaluations rather than the one in
regul ations, such as a nore collaborative approach in which
famlies are involved. She spoke of students who are chall enged
by bad hone situations, where things that should be happening at
home to help a child learn are not happening, and the teachers
can be limted in their inpacts.

MR. PRNKA, drawing from his experience wth individualized
education program (IEP) conmttees with various other education

prof essionals, students, and their famlies, indicated that
having multiple people reviewng a student's learning and
achi evenent levels from their vari ous per spectives and
specialties can be positive; "nultiple pairs of eyes can really
take sonmething apart and |ook for ways of inprovenent."”
However, he didn't see how such could be achieved for al

students nerely due to the tine invol ved. He nmentioned parent
t eacher conference nights that can provide great insight into a
student's Ilife outside of the classroom but it's a short

timeframe and is voluntary in ternms of parent and student
att endance.

8:38:41 AM
GLENN MORDI NE, Retired Teacher, Adm nistrator, (lndisc. - poor
quality audio throughout this testinony) speaking as a retired

teacher and admnistrator, reviewed his past involvenent in
teaching, including his time as a special education teacher and

ARR COW TTEE - 6- June 18, 2014



director of special education prograns. He indicated a
difference between [the views of] standardized testing in |ow
i ncome schools and high-income schools. He pointed out that the
federal law, IEP, trunps state and local |aws for special needs
students. M. Mrdine said that he could understand the
frustration of teachers as one cannot generalize about a group
of students and expect the sane outcome from all of them He
enphasi zed the need to consider special needs students as they
cannot be held to the sanme standard as [non-special needs
students] wunless there is agreenent from the parent and
educat or.

8:43: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS inquired as to how M. Mordine's testinony
may have changed the testinony of others had he testified first.

MR. VANARSDALE mai nt ai ned concern with 50 percent of the teacher
eval uati on being based upon student data, as special education
teachers can be disproportionately inpacted by the poor
performance of a few students.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS surm sed, then, that M. VanArsdale is
concerned with the |ow student-to-teacher ratio, particularly in
special education, as it could skew the evaluations for the
t eacher.

MR. VANARSDALE highlighted how difficult it is to get special
education teachers and how their snmall student-teacher ratio [in
conjunction with this evaluation criterion] could make it worse.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS offered, on the other hand, that perhaps
nore people would be attracted to becone special education
teachers because of the |ow student-teacher ratios that could
provide a greater opportunity to excel, and "the opposite could
be true as well."

MR. VANARSDALE pointed out the unreliability of information from
very small sets of data.

8:48: 28 AM

ARR COW TTEE -7- June 18, 2014



SANDRA STOSTKY, Ed.D, Professor Enmerita, University of Arkansas,
expressed great concern that a decision was nade to tie teacher
eval uations to any percent of a single test, especially not 50
percent, wthout having testing experts talking to the state
board of education or the Governor about the problens with a
single test and a test based on Common Core standards. She said
there is no professional basis for tying any percentage of the
score to a test that is based on standards that have been
validated. "W need to go back, and think how you use a test
that isn't even going to be vetted by Al aska reviewers that wll
be used to evaluate teachers when the test is based on standards
t hensel ves that have not been validated." Even if the test is
based on Al aska's standards, which are alnost identical to the
Common Core standards that are not internationally benchmarked

or research-based. The result is to base 50 percent of a
teacher's evaluation on a dubious test based on dubious
st andar ds. She opined that the aforenentioned is neither
professional nor fair to the teachers. In fact, she said she

was not sure how student growh would be evaluated, because
val ue- added net hodol ogi es have been subjected to a great deal of

criticism She suggested that perhaps the effort to hold
teachers [accountable] would be better placed if there were
t ougher i censure tests for prospective t eachers and

adm ni strators. She further suggested that Al aska's use of the
Praxis test for elenentary teachers and other specialists should
be reviewed by EED. Dr. Stotsky, noting that she was on the
Nat i onal Mat hematics Advisory Conmittee, informed the committee
that research has shown that the only characteristic of an
effective teacher is mastery of subject matter. Al t hough
mastery of subject matter should be placed first, somewhere, and
it is not included in the professional standards as the
priority. Therefore, subject matter mastery shoul d be addressed
rather than tying evaluations of teacher, who have been prepared
wi thout a focus on mastery of subject matter, to student scores
froma test that is based on non-internationally benchmarked and
non-resear ch- based standards.

8:52:42 AM

ARR COW TTEE - 8- June 18, 2014



DR. STOTSKY, in response to Representative Gattis, confirned
that research shows that teachers need to know the subject they
are teaching; this is what the research shows. Dr. Stotsky said
what matters is the correlation between a teacher's mastery of
the subject and inprovenent in student scores. In further
response to Representative Gattis, Dr. Stotsky opined that the
basis for evaluating teachers is whether they can know edgably,
sensibly, and rationally teach the content for what they are

licensed to teach. The aforenmentioned is what a good
admnistrator used to be able to review when they observed a
teacher's classroom she added. How well a teacher teaches a

subject is based on the pedagogy they are supposed |earn, which
is built on the teacher's academ c know edge of the subject
matt er. [ The teacher evaluation system in Al aska] does not get
at the aforenentioned because of the problem with the test and
t he standards on which they are based.

8:56:11 AM

CHAI R REINBCOLD inquired as to nunber of people on the Validating
Commttee for the Common Core standards. She also inquired as
to who on the commttee had research-based experience wth
curriculum and had an understandi ng of what good standards are.

DR. STOTSKY answered that by the end of 2010, there were 29
people on the commttee of which 5 did not sign off on the
standards as internationally benchmarked, researched-based, or
rigorous. She explained that the Validation Commttee consisted
of only one English | anguage arts standards expert, herself, and
only one mathematician, and he had a PhD in mathematics; both
she and the mthematics expert did not sign off on the

st andar ds. Al though there were other nenbers referred to as
mat h experts, they were all |ocated in Departnments of Education
or had doctoral degrees in mathematics education. Dr. Stotsky

enphasi zed that the Common Core standards have yet to be
internationally benchnmarked in the years since they were
adopted, which was practically overnight, by a variety of
di fferent states. She highlighted that sone states changed the
name of the standards so that it would look as if they were not
t he Common Core standards, although they essentially were.

ARR COW TTEE - 9- June 18, 2014



8:58:35 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD inquired as to why she did not validate the
Common Cor e st andar ds.

DR.  STOTSKY explained that she did not validate the English
| anguage arts standards because they were not internationally
benchmarked, which is also one of the reasons why the expert
mat hematician did not validate the math standards. Furthernore,
the standards were not research-based, which was related to how
the standards were organized in that 50 percent of what teachers
teach in K-12 is referred to as informational text and literary
study has to be reduced to about 50 percent in the English
cl ass. The English |anguage arts standards enphasized witing
nore than reading, which is in opposition to 100 years of
research on the topic.

9: 00: 07 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD inquired as to how the Al aska Academ c Standards
conpare to the Common Core standards.

DR. STOISKY replied that the Al aska Academ c Standards for
English language arts seem identical, except for t he
introductory material.

9:01:45 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD related that she initially was open-m nded about
the Common Core standards and then she becanme a skeptic, and now
she is really questioning whether the Conmon Core is right for
Al aska. She then asked if the Common Core is nore rigorous or
just different, particularly with the English |anguage arts
(ELA) subj ect.

DR. STOTSKY stated that the ELA standards are inappropriate at

the primary grade level in many ways, because they ask for
witing that small children sinply cannot do yet. "I woul dn't
call that rigor; | would sinply call it inappropriateness,” she

added. Rigor neans nore challenging academcally, Dr. Stotsky
said, and there is nothing at the high school level that is nore

ARR COW TTEE -10- June 18, 2014



chal I enging academically in Common Core standards than what was
al ready available in many states. "Conmmon Core is so nediocre
that it cannot help but drag Al askan students down," she opi ned.
She further opined that the Common Core does not include
anything that will challenge students, as the standards really
reflect skills rather than content. The ELA standards are not
ri gorous, she reiterated.

9:05: 26 AM

CHAI R REI NBOLD rel ated her understanding that WrkKeys, ACT, and
SAT are all aligned with the Common Core standards.

DR. STOTSKY agreed that appears to be the case, but she hears

di fferent nessages from those who represent ACT and SAT. " Many
of them are trying to say both things sinultaneously," she
st at ed. When David Coleman becane the head of the College
Boards in March, he said he was going to align the SATs to the
|l evel of Common Core, "which nmeans they would be aligned
dowward," as would the AP tests, she opined. The SAT sounds
like it will be easier. She suggested that the higher education

institutions in Alaska should cone together to develop a
matriculation test—that neans that high school graduates would
have to aim for this test in order to get into one of Al aska's
hi gher education institutions. She added that Al aska does not
need the SAT, WrkKeys, or ACT, it needs tests developed by its
own educators for Al aska students.

9:07: 33 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD then inquired as to Dr. Stotsky's view of 50
percent of a teacher's evaluation being linked to [test scores].

DR. STOTSKY characterized it as a very bad idea as it is unfair
to teachers and nmakes no sense for anyone who understands
testing and nmeasurenents. The tests are based on standards that
have not been vali dat ed. She questioned how the governor could
have made such a recommendation on his own or how a state board
coul d have even approved and incorporated such a recommendation
wi t hout having hearings with testing experts.

ARR COW TTEE -11- June 18, 2014



9:09: 20 AM

CHAI R REINBOLD highlighted that ww. act.org specifies that the
ACT is pleased to be an active partner with Common Core state
standard initiatives. She then related her understanding that
the university is aligned to the Comon Core standards.

DR. STOTSKY infornmed the committee that in the [Race to Top]
application for a waiver, states had to commit to obtaining
cooperation of higher education faculty that students who passed
a college-readiness test will be able to take credit-bearing
classes in their freshman year of college. Any test based on
Common Core-like standards will result in students with 8th
grade or Algebra | level mathematics going to a higher education
institution. Therefore, university nmathematics departnents wl|
have to ensure the mathenmatics courses are accessible to them
The aforenentioned, she enphasized, nakes it inportant for
hi gher education to becone involved in ternms of vetting tests
used with state standards.

9:12:39 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD recalled that at a recent Board of Regents
meeting one of the academc officials said [the wuniversity
systen] is in alignnment with the national agenda and set on
obtai ning nore data. She noted that many Al askan students are
not going to attend higher education schools in Al aska.
Mor eover, she stressed the need for the university to focus on
excellence in order to attract students.

DR. STOTSKY expressed the need to have details of the nationa
agenda, particularly in terms of the level of know edge in an
academ c area. In further response to Chair Reinbold, Dr.
Stotsky said that professors wll not pay attention to high
school standards unless invited to do so.

9:15:43 AM
CHAIR REINBOLD asked if there is any correlation between the

NCLB [No Child Left Behind] waiver and the Comon Core
initiative.

ARR COW TTEE -12- June 18, 2014



DR.  STOISKY explained that the U S. Departnent of Education
wai ver was an effort to let states off the hook that were
commtted under NCLB to have all students reach the Ilevel of
"proficient” by 2014. Al states knew they could not achieve
proficiency with all of their students, and mny asked and
recei ved waivers, but the waivers conmit the states to adopting
Common Core standards and the tests associated with them "“I'n
ot her words, they conme with strings attached,” she stated. " f
Al aska wants strings, that's a choice your governor [and] your
| egi sl ature can nake."

9:17:29 AM

CHAI R REINBOLD expressed frustration that the State Board of
Education and EED noved forward with adopting the standards and
applying for a waiver wthout consent/involvenent of the
| egi sl ature.

DR STOTSKY remarked that nost legislatures were in the dark
but pointed out that it is never too late to determ ne to what
the state is commtted as there will certainly be bills.

CHAIR REINBOLD said that is why she has the EED on Iine. She
noted that it has been very difficult obtaining information
regarding funding and the [structure] of the total package in
terms of the strings/costs associated wth the federal

requirenents. She said she is glad the EED is on |ine and she
wi |l be asking, again, what the federal mandates are. The train
is going very fast, and the legislature is overlooked, she
opi ned. Chair Reinbold enphasized the need for the elected

officials to listen to teachers and parents on these matters and
to have authority and oversight on education. She said she is
studyi ng the wai ver.

9:19: 29 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S said she did not think that Al aska applied
for Race to the Top noney, and she inquired as to what an

international benchmark is, and how that may apply to Al aska
state standards.

ARR COW TTEE -13- June 18, 2014



DR. STOTSKY expl ai ned that international benchmarking determ nes
whet her a course's standards are conparable to those in high-
achieving countries, nost of which are Asian countries. Experts
in the topics need to conpare the subjects across the countries.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S pointed out the huge hurdles and concerns
with measuring donestically, and asked why it is necessary to
nmeasure internationally.

DR. STOTSKY clarified that international benchmarking matters
| egally, particularly since those who created the Common Core
standards promsed the state that the standards would be
internationally benchmarked. Furthernore, the [federal] Race to
the Top application contained |egal |anguage specifying that
states will be given internationally benchmarked standards. | f
standards are not aligned to the best standards avail able and
have not been validated, she questioned why teacher evaluations
woul d be tied to student test scores.

9:24: 33 AM

CHAI R REI NBOLD nentioned that HB 278 includes lots of links with

the NCLB wai ver. She pointed out that now states are required
to pay for the ACT, SAT, and WrkKeys tests that are aligned to
the Comon Core. There's no escaping the Common Core, she
opi ned.

DR. STOTSKY suggested that if Al aska developed its own state
test, it would get itself out of this trouble.

CHAIR REINBOLD related that Alaska has nmaintained sone state
control by setting the cut scores.

9:28: 33 AM

GLENN MORDINE (indisc. - poor quality audio throughout this
testinmony) opined that administrators were left out of this,
al though adm ni strators have the goal of assisting and hel ping
teachers obtain the maxi num performance fromtheir children. He
remarked that from a practical standpoint, there has to be an

ARR COW TTEE -14- June 18, 2014



understanding of the population. He provided remarks draw ng
fromhis recent experiences as a high school principal.

9:31: 52 AM

RICK SM TH, Teacher, said that teacher evaluations by principals
can be biased based on the relationship between the two peopl e,
and he believes there should be a nore objective evaluation
process. But, he expressed concern when teachers are eval uated
on the test scores of students, even when the teacher is making
progress with their students it may not bear out in the test
score because student achievenment is based on many things over
whi ch teachers have no control. Students have a |ife outside of
school that inpacts their learning and their test scores. He
guestioned what would happen in those schools wth |[|arge
popul ati ons of students inpacted by their socioeconomc |evels
and home life, wupon which the teachers wIll be adversely
eval uated. He suggested that teachers are being nade scapegoats
for parents and society failing the students.

9:37: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S surm sed then that there are teachers who
are considering noving el sewhere because they will be eval uated
negatively conpared to teachers with students whose parents are
i nvol ved. In lowperformng schools, one would assunme that
there is sonme function or sonme way that they would welcone
sonmething |ike coaching or nentoring. Representative Gttis
opi ned that discussion of the lack of parental and conmunity
i nvol venent does not advance the need to educate kids to get
them out of a bad situation [socioeconomcally or otherw se],
and the only way out for these youth is to becone educated. She
said the question is how to facilitate giving "those kids the
opportunity to get out of that ness.” She said her enployees
like a plan for inprovenent to know where they are, where they
made m stakes, what they have to do to inprove, and where the
next step is. She said she does not see that as a bad t hing.

MR SMTH agreed with Representative Gattis, adding that there
are definitely teachers that need to be out.

ARR COW TTEE - 15- June 18, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS surm sed that the challenge is to devel op
a teacher evaluation system that targets teachers who would be
better suited for another industry. It is not fair that others
have to take up the slack, she added. She understands that
teachers are concerned about ousting good teachers, but there
are parents that are concerned about wasting a year of their
children's education [on a bad teacher]. "I think we all know
somet hing should be done." She then conmended the departnent
for advancing forward the idea that something needs to be done.

9:41: 37 AM

CHAI R REI NBOLD rem nded everyone that the |egislature does not
wite regulations; the boards and departnents wite regulations
based on statutes passed by the legislature. She noted that the
passage of her legislation, HB 140, will provide legislators 10
days to review and weigh-in on regulations prior to their
adoption and the opportunity to interact with the departnents
when regul ati ons are bei ng devel oped.

9:43: 09 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD informed the committee that research her office
gat hered found that approximately 42 states have adopted, or are
in the process of adopting, a plan to revise teacher evaluations
with the Conmmon Core initiative. She said she understood the
need to consider new standards, per the 1996 |aw governing
teachers and administrative evaluations. However, she
guestioned why it is occurring now and whether it is part of the
NCLB wai ver. She then questioned how the departnent is
addressing the 800 comrents it has received, particularly the
concerns from teachers. She directed the departnent to address
the concerns surrounding special needs students and wunfair
wei ghting on math, |anguage arts, and science teachers. She
t hen asked the department to describe the difference between the
Common Core standards and Al aska's standards. She al so inquired
as to why 50 percent of a teacher's evaluation is related to
[student test scores] and how tied the state is to the NCLB
wai ver. She also asked how different the Applied Measurenent
Professionals, Inc. (AWMP) test is from the Smarter Balanced

ARR COW TTEE -16- June 18, 2014



Assessnent Consortium (SBAC) and Partnership for Assessnment of
Readi ness for College and Careers (PARCC) tests.

9:46: 47 AM

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and

Early Developnment, said he wll try to address what the
department was asked to speak about, and he will also attenpt to
address many of the issues that have been brought up at this
heari ng. He then provided sone background, including when the
process started, which he opined would illustrate disconnect
from any federal agenda. He then said he would review the

regul atory process followed by response to the questions raised
in any renmaining tinme.

CHAIR REINBOLD interjected that she would like the questions
that have been raised during today's neeting to be answered
first.

MR. MORSE turned to the question of why now. He expl ai ned that
in 2008, Al aska brought together 400 stakeholders from across
the state. The stakeholders identified teacher quality as one
of the key areas for devel opi ng an education plan. |In 2009, EED
put together a teacher quality working group that included 37
i ndi viduals who were not departnental staff or Alaska State
School Board nenbers; two were principals, one was from the
Al aska principals association, and three were from NEA After
wor king a nunber of years, in Mrch, 2012, that working group
provided a report to the Alaska State Board of Education and
took action on a nunber of itens in the report, including the
purpose of the evaluation and adding nore objectivity to the
eval uati on. There was an issue of subjectivity when principals
eval uate teachers. The working group wanted to focus on student
| earning rather than student achievenent. The aforenentioned is
an inportant distinction, he opined, because focusing on student
achi evenment would potentially result in focusing only on the
test that is given. He highlighted that the regulations are
clear that this is not focused on a single test but rather
multiple neasures designed locally with teachers engaged in the
process. |In June 2012, the board put out the regulations for an
extended public comment period; those regul ations addressed the

ARR COW TTEE -17- June 18, 2014



cultural standards included in the evaluation, the purpose and
scope of the evaluation, reporting, and student |earning data.
The public comment period |lasted from June 13, 2012, to Novenber
2, 2012, he said. In response to Chair Reinbold, M. Mrse
recalled that they received about 800 public coments. The
public notice on June 13, 2012, stated that after the public
comment ends, EED will adopt these or other provisions dealing
with the same subject wthout further notice. The public
comment that was provided in witing was included in the Al aska
State Board of Education packet that was put out for the public
to review, including the public coment that was received from

the Governor. The Governor's public comment encouraged the
Al aska State Board of Education to consider 50 percent of the
eval uati on being student data. The main job of schools is to
i mprove student learning; therefore, it nakes sense that student
| earning would be part of a teacher's evaluation, he opined. In
fact, it seens counter intuitive that student |earning has not

been part of a teacher's evaluation. Although sonme people felt
that student |earning/data should be 100 percent of a teacher's
eval uation, the Alaska State Board of Education felt that
observati onal information |earned from teacher evaluations
shoul d be included. The Alaska State Board of Education took a
gradual approach to inplenmentation of the regulations, he
expl ai ned. M. Mrse highlighted that the departnment reviewed
the public coments very carefully. In fact, so nmuch public
comment was received early on that the departnent re-noticed the
regulations at its OCctober neeting to point out the 11
adjustnments to the regulations in Cctober, al t hough the
adj ustments were not very significant and fell within the scope.

9:53: 08 AM

CHAI R REI NBCOLD, relaying questions from soneone in the audience,
inquired as to how much the regul ati ons were changed. She then
inquired as to the trends that manifested in the 800 public
comments. She also asked if the departnent took action based on
the input fromthe teachers across the state.

MR. MORSE replied yes, reiterating that 11 changes were nmade to

the regul ations. He noted that there were coments that were
beyond the scope of the noticed regulations, sone of which have

ARR COW TTEE - 18- June 18, 2014



been nmentioned at this neeting as well. For exanple, there were
concerns with regard to data collection, which is not really an

i ssue. There was also concern regarding confidentiality, but
the confidentiality of the teacher evaluation system was not
i npacted by these regul ations. In fact, there are sone strong

confidentiality protections that remain in place in statute.
Therefore, the departnment could not respond to sone of the
comment s because they were outside the scope of the process.

9:54:15 AM

MR. MORSE, returning to the tineline of the process, inforned
the conmttee that the Alaska State Board of Education adopted
the regulations in Decenber 2012. He then explained that this
regul ation requires that neasures of student |earning are used

in teacher eval uations. Furthernore, it requires at |east two,
but up to four, neasures that the local districts develop by
working with their teachers. The regulation does not require

every teacher in the district to be evaluated identically.
Therefore, special education teachers who only deal with special

education students may be | ooked at differently. Mor eover, the
regul ation does not require the sole source of use to be state
assessnments. The regulation, 19.099, defines "neasurenent”
clearly as "assessnent of student know edge, understanding, or
skill and may include an assessnent that is not a standardized
test". Therefore, the neasurenent could be a performance of
musi ¢ or physical education or based on student projects. M.

Morse explained that in ternms of including student |earning, the
districts are supposed to pilot a system next year and, by next

sutmer, bring it before their local board for adoption. For
2015- 2016 and 2016-2017, 20 percent of the rating of the overal
system woul d include student learning, and that will increase to

35 percent by 2017-2018 and to 50 percent by 2018-2019.

9:56: 57 AM

MR. MORSE, in response to earlier questions/concerns, inforned
the conmttee that testing experts were consulted. He further
informed the commttee that the departnent has worked with the
University of Alaska and will continue to do so. He refuted the
notion that the test is dubious. Wth regard to the comrents

ARR COW TTEE -19- June 18, 2014



that there should be tougher neasures in terns of the Praxis,
the Al aska State Board of Education expressed its concerns with
that at its March and June neetings. To the comments that
content know edge is not inportant to Alaska's teachers, M.
Morse pointed out that 4 AAC 04.200, standard 4, is about
content know edge. There are eight standards for teachers, and
one targets content knowl edge and all eight are a priority.
Wth regard to the concerns that there is subjectivity in the
process of evaluation, this work is actually about renoving
subj ectivity. Concerns that this is limted to a witten
assessnment are not true, as it can be a performance, he said.
Furthernore, it is not the departnent's objective to make [the
teacher evaluation system punitive but rather to inprove
learning in schools, inprove achievenent, and help teachers
perform better. Drawing from his 28 years in the profession, 11
of which were in the classroom M. Mrse said he was a better
teacher wth feedback. Wth regard to the concerns about data,
the departnent is not suggesting collecting data that it has not
already collected and can now be used to help teachers perform
better and students to |earn nore. In terms of the notion that
princi pals should have been nore engaged from the begi nning, he
reiterated that principals were engaged from 2009 forward.
Regarding gifted students versus those in special education,
those differences can be addressed because the system is
designed locally. Noting that he taught both popul ations, he
opined that it is nmore difficult to increase achievenent of
really high achievers, but one should not make the excuse that

hi gh achi evers cannot |earn nore. The same should be true of
| ow-performng students regardless of why they are |ow
per f or m ng. He stated that the entire system is about noving

students forward. M. Morse enphasized that [the departnent]
was very deliberate in including nore than standardi zed tests;
it is about looking at |ocal performance. Wth regard to
comments that this evaluation system m ght attract nore teachers
to special education because achievenent could be increased and
teacher performance could be rated higher, he opined that such a
result would be great.

10: 00: 27 AM

ARR COW TTEE - 20- June 18, 2014



CHAI R REI NBOLD thanked M. Mrse and said there will be on=going
hearings. She asked where peopl e can send questi ons.

MR. MORSE reconmended that people with questions can contact him

or Marci Herman, |egislative |Iiaison. He noted that the
department is doing a lot of work wth districts as these
systens are noved forward and response wll be done in the

bal ance of all those needs.

10: 01: 33 AM

CHAI R REINBOLD asked if these regulations are a requirenent of
t he NCLB wai ver.

MR. MORSE explained that the regulations were noved forward in
2008 and adopted in 2012, well before the waiver becane part of
the process in Al aska. Therefore, these regulations preceded
the NCLB wai ver. Because this system was in place by choice
the state was able to neet the requirenent of evaluation within
t he wai ver. He clarified that Al aska had a system that all owed
the state to apply for the waiver, but the system was not built
in response to applying for a waiver.

CHAI R REI NBOLD asked if the regulations are a requirenment of the
NCLB wai ver .

MR. MORSE answered that the departnment did not pass these
regul ations as a requirenment of the waiver. In further response
to Chair Reinbold, M. Mrse said the NCLB waiver requires the
use of student learning in evaluating teachers, which Al aska -
by choice - had in place prior to the application for the
wai ver .

10: 03: 08 AM

CHAIR REINBOLD asked if the new teacher evaluation system is
simlar to evaluation systens in other states that have fully
adopted the Conmon Core initiative.

MR. MORSE responded that he could not speak for other states as
the departnent is focused on Al aska.

ARR COW TTEE -21- June 18, 2014



10: 03: 50 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the comittee, the
Adm ni strative Regulation Review Conmittee neeting was adjourned

at 10:03 a. m

ARR COW TTEE -22- June 18, 2014



